
 
 
 
 
 

JUDICIAL ADVISORY 
BOARD MINUTES 

 
September 24, 1997 
 
The Judicial Advisory Board of the City of Mesa met in the lower level meeting room of the City Council 
Chambers, 57 East 1st Street, on September 24, 1997 at 8:07 a.m. 
 
COMMITTEE PRESENT STAFF PRESENT COUNCIL PRESENT 
 
Chairman Marilyn Wilson C.K. Luster Mayor Wayne Brown 
Sylvia Garcia-Suttle Cindy Barris Jim Stapley 
James R. Hart II Neal Beets 
John Kerr Barbara Jones OTHERS PRESENT 
Robert D. Myers Ellen Pence 
Judith C.R. O'Neill  Bev Hart 
 STAFF ABSENT Chris Moeser 
COMMITTEE ABSENT  James Riggs 
 Kelly Walsh Marilynn Wennerstrom 
Ruth V. McGregor 
 
Chairman Wilson excused Boardmember McGregor from the meeting. 
 
Chairman Wilson welcomed Mayor Brown, Councilmember Stapley, and City Manager Charles Luster to the 
meeting. 
 
1. Approval of the minutes of the Judicial Advisory Board meeting of September 10, 1997. 
 

Chairman Wilson noted changes to pages 2 and 3 of the minutes. 
 
It was moved by Vice Chairman Hart, seconded by Boardmember Myers, that the minutes of the 
September 10, 1997 Judicial Advisory Board meeting be approved as amended. 
 
Chairman Wilson declared the motion carried unanimously by those present. 

 
2. Review results of Council action on amending Section 2-3-8(A) of Ordinance No. 3340. 
 

Chairman Wilson advised that she and Vice Chairman Hart attended the September 12, 1997 Study 
Session and responded to questions from Council pertaining to the proposed amendment to Ordinance 
No. 3340, which would allow members of the Board to discuss and vote on the appointment of applicants 
recruited by those Boardmembers following full and immediate disclosure of the member's recruitment 
activities to the other members of the Board. 

 
 
 



Judicial Advisory Board Meeting 
September 24, 1997 
Page 2 
 

Assistant to the City Manager Ellen Pence reported that the amendment was approved by Council on 
September 15, 1997 and is currently in effect due to the inclusion of an emergency clause, which provides 
for an immediate effective date. 
 
Chairman Wilson and Vice Chairman Hart commented on the Council's interest in the Judicial Advisory 
Board's responsibilities and procedures. 

 
3. Review revised procedures. 
 

Chairman Wilson expressed appreciation to Ms. Pence for her assistance in revising the Judicial Advisory 
Board procedures. 
 
Ms. Pence outlined modifications incorporated into the list of procedures in response to input from 
Boardmembers and noted additional minor changes to be made. Ms. Pence stated the opinion that the 
revised procedures reflect the Board's direction and intent. 

 
4. Discuss and consider status of the reappointment of Presiding City Magistrate and City Magistrate: 
 

a. Review project time line. 
 
City Attorney Neal Beets provided an overview of the Judicial Advisory Board project time line. Mr. 
Beets said that a subcommittee of the Judicial Advisory Board, consisting of Vice Chairman Hart and 
Boardmembers O'Neill and Myers, has been working with James Riggs, President of Research and 
Information Specialists, Inc., to develop survey questions. Mr. Beets indicated that finalization/approval 
of the survey questions has been scheduled under Item 4b of today's agenda. 
 
Mr. Beets reported that the next key elements within the project time line are to print/distribute the survey 
and obtain feedback through survey responses. 
 
Chairman Wilson noted that Items 8 (interview candidates and conduct public hearing) and 9 (deliberate 
and recommend) of the project time line have been tentatively scheduled for December 10, 1997. 
Chairman Wilson commented that consideration was given to scheduling the public hearing and 
interviews for the same day to avoid travel to multiple meetings. 
 
b. Review survey questions and status of mailing lists. 
 
Boardmember Myers commented that he envisions the survey process as an evolutionary endeavor.  
Boardmember Myers expressed concern that the length and complexity of the proposed survey may serve 
as a detriment and discourage, rather than encourage, responses. Boardmember Myers noted that portions 
of the City of Phoenix survey have previously been obtained but suggested that the entire City of Phoenix 
survey be requested and reviewed. 

 
Boardmember Myers added that he recognizes the short time frame currently available for consideration 
of the reappointment of Presiding City Magistrate Harold Reeb and City Magistrate George Forster and is 
therefore not opposed to initially utilizing the survey in its current form. Boardmember Myers encouraged 
continued efforts to modify the survey in an effort to solicit a greater number of responses and suggested 
that consideration be given in the future to extending the time frame for reply to 60 days. 



Judicial Advisory Board Meeting 
September 24, 1997 
Page 3 
 

Mr. Riggs expressed agreement with Boardmember Myer's comments and said that the survey distribution 
method to be utilized at this time differs from that proposed for the future. Mr. Riggs noted present time 
constraints relative to consideration of the reappointment of Magistrates Reeb and Forster and stated that 
an expanded time frame for responses is anticipated for subsequent surveys. Mr. Riggs concurred that the 
survey process should be evolutionary in nature. 

 
Boardmember O'Neill reiterated her concerns pertaining to the number of response categories available to 
those completing the surveys and difficulties in differentiating between categories (e.g., superior/very 
good or unacceptable/poor). 

 
Mr. Riggs referred to prior discussion concerning this issue and commented that a reduced number of 
available categories may correspond with Boardmember Myer's suggestion for a less complicated survey. 
Mr. Riggs reviewed survey formats utilized by other agencies and commented that composition is 
dependent on information desired. 

 
Vice Chairman Hart reported that the survey in its present form is lengthier because a portion has been 
included for comments following each segment rather than merely a general comments section at the end 
of the survey. Vice Chairman Hart recognized that such a provision may result in a more complex 
evaluation method but will provide opportunity for individuals to clarify responses. 

 
Mr. Riggs advised that the survey will be copied 2-sided and will therefore appear as a shorter document. 

 
Brief discussion ensued pertaining to distinctions between survey categories and the format of the survey 
form presently utilized by the Arizona Supreme Court's Commission on Judicial Performance Review. 

 
Mr. Riggs stated that the number of categories on the present survey form may be collapsed at the Board's 
direction. Boardmember Myers indicated a willingness to initially utilize the current form and consider 
further changes at a future date. 

 
Boardmembers and Mr. Riggs spoke concerning the roles of the Presiding City Magistrate as a trial judge 
and as an administrator and the proposed distribution of an additional survey pertaining to the Presiding 
City Magistrate's administrative functions/individuals to whom the survey is anticipated to be submitted 
(such as court staff). Boardmember Myers stated that he can provide a list of the types of positions that he 
has personally utilized as survey respondents in the past. 

 
Boardmember O'Neill questioned whether the proposed sampling pertaining to the administrative role is 
adequate and whether the survey pertaining to such role should somehow be merged with that used for the 
role as a trial judge. 

 
Vice Chairman Hart expressed the opinion that the individuals responding to the survey pertaining to the 
administrative functions of the Presiding City Magistrate represent a significant sampling. Vice Chairman 
Hart commented that Presiding City Magistrate Reeb should be encouraged to submit a list of potential 
respondents. 

 
Discussion ensued pertaining to anticipated response rates for the surveys. 



Judicial Advisory Board Meeting 
September 24, 1997 
Page 4 
 

In reply to a question from Chairman Wilson, Ms. Pence stated that mailing lists and statistical data 
previously requested are expected to be available from the City Court Administrator by Friday, 
September 26, 1997. Ms. Pence indicated that materials will be reviewed by staff and forwarded to Mr. 
Riggs. 
 
Boardmember Myers requested that Presiding City Magistrate Reeb prepare a list of potential survey 
respondents appropriate for the Presiding City Magistrate position. 
 
c. Discuss following up on references and visiting courtrooms. 
 
Chairman Wilson noted that it was previously suggested that interested Boardmembers visit courtrooms. 
Ms. Pence advised that staff can assist Boardmembers with any necessary scheduling. 
 
Mr. Beets reviewed a proposal from Senior Personnel Analyst Kelly Walsh to utilize an outside firm and 
other agencies (e.g., Judicial Conduct Commission) to conduct investigations pertaining to credit data and 
complaints. Mr. Beets advised that staff recommends using a form letter such as that utilized by the City 
of Phoenix and various other agencies. 
 
Following brief discussion, Chairman Wilson stated that it is the consensus of the Boardmembers present 
to proceed as outlined. 

 
5. Consider process for filling new position of Magistrate. 
 

Ms. Pence advised that Ms. Walsh was unable to attend today's meeting but has suggested that she 
develop a proposed time line for the recruitment/outreach process and present the matter for discussion at 
the next meeting of the Judicial Advisory Board. 
 
Mr. Beets noted actions required prior to the interviewing of candidates (e.g., print/distribute the survey, 
receive and tabulate responses, advertise notice of the public hearing) and time frames necessary to 
accomplish such tasks. Mr. Beets requested direction from the Board whether to proceed at this time with 
the process for filling the vacant position of Magistrate or delay consideration pending the reappointment 
process. 
 
Boardmember O'Neill questioned the feasibility of interviewing candidates for the new position 
simultaneously with the interviews for reappointment. 
 
Boardmember Myers inquired concerning the urgency of the need to fill the new position and spoke 
regarding the time frame likely to be needed to screen applications received (estimated at 50-75) and 
select a specified number of candidates to interview. 
 
In response to a question from Vice Chairman Hart, Mr. Beets expressed the opinion that at this time, the 
vacancy can be filled temporarily by a pro tem judge. Mr. Beets noted the extensive time span that will be 
necessary for recruitment/outreach, application screening, and candidate interviewing for the new 
permanent position. 
 
Chairman Wilson suggested that Ms. Walsh proceed with the development of a proposed time line for the 
recruitment/outreach process (journal publications, etc.). 



Judicial Advisory Board Meeting  
September 24, 1997  
Page 5 
 

Boardmember Myers expressed concern relative to utilizing pro tem judges in lieu of appointed positions 
and encouraged filling the existing vacancy as soon as possible. Mr. Beets outlined steps that can be taken 
by staff at this time to begin implementation of the process to fill the new position (e.g., prepare 
application, determine advertising deadlines). 

 
6. Discuss and consider agenda items for next meeting and determine meeting date. 
 

Mayor Brown expressed appreciation to the Boardmembers for their efforts and willingness to assist the 
City. 
 
Chairman Wilson suggested that in addition to the information to be prepared by Ms. Walsh, the Board 
consider at the next meeting possible interview questions. Mr. Beets indicated that an extensive list can be 
prepared and distributed, from which the Board can select or add questions. 
 
In response to a question from Chairman Wilson, Mr. Beets stated the opinion that an Executive Session 
would be appropriate for discussion pertaining to interview questions to ensure confidentiality of the 
process. 
 
Brief discussion ensued pertaining to consideration by the Board of anonymous comments (anonymous 
letters are not to be reviewed or considered by members of the Board) and the manner in which survey 
responses will be tabulated/reported. 
 
Following additional discussion, Chairman Wilson stated that it is the consensus of the Boardmembers 
present that the next meeting of the Judicial Advisory Board be held on Wednesday, November 5, 1997, 
at 8 a.m. Chairman Wilson noted that an additional meeting can be scheduled in October if determined 
necessary. 
 
Ms. Pence noted that due to the remodeling of the City Council Chambers, the next meeting of the 
Judicial Advisory Board will be held in Suite 170 of the Mesa City Plaza. 

 
7. Adjournment. 
 

It was moved by Boardmember O'Neill, seconded by Vice Chairman Hart, that the meeting adjourn at 
9:07 a.m. 
 
Chairman Wilson declared the motion carried unanimously by those present. 

 
I hereby certify that the foregoing minutes are a true and correct copy of the minutes of the Judicial Advisory 
Board meeting of the City of Mesa, Arizona, held on the 24th day of September 1997. I further certify that the 
meeting was duly called and held and that a quorum was present. 
 

Dated this 19th day of November 1997 
 
 

BARBARA JONES, CITY CLERK 
 


	JUDICIAL ADVISORY
	BOARD MINUTES

